SECTION I

BID DOCUMENTS

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS

Town of Emmitsburg Emmitsburg, Maryland Water Treatment Plant Clarifier

General Notice

The Town of Emmitsburg (Owner) is requesting Bids for the construction of the following Project:

New Water Treatment Plant Clarifier Project 24-01

Bids for the construction of the Project will be received at the **Town of Emmitsburg** located at **300A South Seton Ave., Emmitsburg, MD 21727**, until **Wednesday**, **February 28**, **2024** at **4:00 P.M.** local time (EST). The time and date of receipt by the Owner shall be stamped or handwritten on the outside of the bid proposal package by the Owner upon receipt. Bids shall remain unopened until Thursday, February 29, 2024 at 11:00 A.M. At that time the Bids received will be **publicly** opened and read.

The Project includes the following Work:

Furnishing all labor, materials, equipment and performance of work for construction of the new Water Treatment Plant Clarifier.

Bids are requested for the following Contract: New Water Treatment Plant Clarifier/Project 24-01

Owner anticipates that the Project's total bid price will be approximately \$2.0 Million - \$2.5 Million. The Project has an expected duration of 360 days.

Obtaining the Bidding Documents

Information and Bidding Documents for the Project can be found at the following designated website:

https://www.emmitsburgmd.gov/null/public_bidding.php

Bidding Documents may be downloaded from the designated website. The designated website will be updated periodically with addenda, reports, and other information relevant to submitting a Bid for the Project. All official notifications, addenda, and other Bidding Documents will be offered only through the designated website. Neither Owner nor Engineer will be responsible for Bidding Documents, including addenda, if any, obtained from sources other than the designated website.

Pre-bid Conference

A pre-bid conference for the Project will be held on Wednesday, January 24, 2024 at 10:00 A.M at the Town Water Treatment Plant, 8585 Crystal Fountain Road, Emmitsburg, Maryland 21727. Attendance at the pre-bid conference is encouraged but not required.

In the event of inclement weather on February 16, 2023, the pre-bid conference for the Project will be re-scheduled to be held on Friday, January 26, 2024 at 10:00 A.M at the Town Water Treatment Plant, 8585 Crystal Fountain Road, Emmitsburg, Maryland 21727. Attendees are encouraged to check the website at <u>https://www.emmitsburgmd.gov/null/public_bidding.php</u> for inclement weather updates at 5 PM on the evening of January 23, 2024.

Instructions to Bidders.

For all further requirements regarding bid submittal, qualifications, procedures, and contract award, refer to the Instructions to Bidders that are included in the Bidding Documents.

American Iron and Steel

Section 746 of Title VII of the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2017 (Division A - Agriculture, Rural Development, Food and Drug Administration, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2017) and subsequent statutes mandating domestic preference applies an American Iron and Steel requirement to this project. All iron and steel products used in this project must be produced in the United States. The term "iron and steel products" means the following products made primarily of iron or steel: lined or unlined pipes and fittings, manhole covers and other municipal castings, hydrants, tanks, flanges, pipe clamps and restraints, valves, structural steel, reinforced precast concrete, and Construction Materials.

The following waivers apply to this Contract:

De Minimis, Minor Components, Pig iron and direct reduced iron

This Advertisement is issued by:

Owner: Town of Emmitsburg By: Cathy Willets Title: Town Manager Date: January 10, 2024

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
Article 1— Defined Terms1
Article 2— Bidding Documents1
Article 3— Qualifications of Bidders2
Article 4— Pre-Bid Conference
Article 5— Site and Other Areas; Existing Site Conditions; Examination of Site; Owner's Safety Program; Other Work at the Site
Article 6— Bidder's Representations and Certifications4
Article 7— Interpretations and Addenda5
Article 8— Bid Security
Article 9— Contract Times
Article 10— Substitute and "Or Equal" Items6
Article 11— Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Others7
Article 12— Preparation of Bid7
Article 13— Basis of Bid8
Article 14— Submittal of Bid9
Article 15— Modification and Withdrawal of Bid9
Article 16— Opening of Bids10
Article 17— Bids to Remain Subject to Acceptance10
Article 18— Evaluation of Bids and Award of Contract10
Article 19— Bonds and Insurance11
Article 20— Signing of Agreement11
Article 21— Sales and Use Taxes11
Article 22— Contracts to Be Assigned12
Article 23— FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

ARTICLE 1—DEFINED TERMS

- 1.01 Terms used in these Instructions to Bidders have the meanings indicated in the General Conditions and Supplementary Conditions. Additional terms used in these Instructions to Bidders have the meanings indicated below:
 - A. *Issuing Office*—The office from which the Bidding Documents are to be issued, and which registers plan holders.

ARTICLE 2—BIDDING DOCUMENTS

- 2.01 Bidder shall obtain a complete set of Bidding Requirements and proposed Contract Documents (together, the Bidding Documents). It is Bidder's responsibility to determine that it is using a complete set of documents in the preparation of a Bid. Bidder assumes sole responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the use of incomplete documents, by Bidder itself or by its prospective Subcontractors and Suppliers.
- 2.02 Bidding Documents are made available for the sole purpose of obtaining Bids for completion of the Project and permission to download or distribution of the Bidding Documents does not confer a license or grant permission or authorization for any other use. Authorization to download documents, or other distribution, includes the right for plan holders to print documents solely for their use, and the use of their prospective Subcontractors and Suppliers, provided the plan holder pays all costs associated with printing or reproduction. Printed documents may not be re-sold under any circumstances.
- 2.03 Owner has established a Bidding Documents Website as indicated in the Advertisement or invitation to bid. Owner recommends that Bidder obtain a complete set of the Bidding Documents from such website. Bidders may rely that sets of Bidding Documents obtained from the Bidding Documents Website are complete, unless an omission is blatant.
- 2.04 "Deleted"
- 2.05 "Deleted"
- 2.06 *Electronic Documents*
 - A. When the Bidding Requirements indicate that electronic (digital) copies of the Bidding Documents are available, such documents will be made available to the Bidders as Electronic Documents in the manner specified.
 - 1. Bidding Documents will be provided in Adobe PDF (Portable Document Format) (.pdf) that is readable by Adobe Acrobat Reader Version 2020 or later. It is the intent of the Engineer and Owner that such Electronic Documents are to be exactly representative of the paper copies of the documents. However, because the Owner and Engineer cannot totally control the transmission and receipt of Electronic Documents nor the Contractor's means of reproduction of such documents, the Owner and Engineer cannot and do not guarantee that Electronic Documents and reproductions prepared from those versions are identical in every manner to the paper copies.
 - B. Unless otherwise stated in the Bidding Documents, the Bidder may use and rely upon complete sets of Electronic Documents of the Bidding Documents, described in Paragraph 2.06.A above. However, Bidder assumes all risks associated with differences

arising from transmission/receipt of Electronic Documents versions of Bidding Documents and reproductions prepared from those versions and, further, assumes all risks, costs, and responsibility associated with use of the Electronic Documents versions to derive information that is not explicitly contained in printed paper versions of the documents, and for Bidder's reliance upon such derived information.

C. "Deleted"

ARTICLE 3—QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDERS

- 3.01 "Deleted"
- 3.02 "Deleted"
- 3.03 Bidder is to submit the following information with its Bid to demonstrate Bidder's qualifications to perform the Work:
 - A. Written evidence establishing its qualifications such as financial data, previous experience, and present commitments.
 - B. A written statement that Bidder is authorized to do business in the state where the Project is located, or a written certification that Bidder will obtain such authority prior to the Effective Date of the Contract.
 - C. Bidder's state or other contractor license number, if applicable.
 - D. Subcontractor and Supplier qualification information.
 - E. Other required information regarding qualifications.
- 3.04 A Bidder's failure to submit required qualification information within the times indicated may disqualify Bidder from receiving an award of the Contract.
- 3.05 No requirement in this Article 3 to submit information will prejudice the right of Owner to seek additional pertinent information regarding Bidder's qualifications.

ARTICLE 4—PRE-BID CONFERENCE

- 4.01 "Deleted"
- 4.02 A non-mandatory pre-bid conference will be held at the time and location indicated in the Advertisement or invitation to bid. Representatives of Owner and Engineer will be present to discuss the Project. Bidders are encouraged to attend and participate in the conference; however, attendance at this conference is not required to submit a Bid.
- 4.03 "Deleted"
- 4.04 Information presented at the pre-Bid conference does not alter the Contract Documents. Owner will issue Addenda to make any changes to the Contract Documents that result from discussions

at the pre-Bid conference. Information presented, and statements made at the pre-bid conference will not be binding or legally effective unless incorporated in an Addendum.

ARTICLE 5—SITE AND OTHER AREAS; EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS; EXAMINATION OF SITE; OWNER'S SAFETY PROGRAM; OTHER WORK AT THE SITE

- 5.01 Site and Other Areas
 - A. The Site is identified in the Bidding Documents. By definition, the Site includes rights-of-way, easements, and other lands furnished by Owner for the use of the Contractor. Any additional lands required for temporary construction facilities, construction equipment, or storage of materials and equipment, and any access needed for such additional lands, are to be obtained and paid for by Contractor.

5.02 *Existing Site Conditions*

- A. Subsurface and Physical Conditions; Hazardous Environmental Conditions
 - 1. The Supplementary Conditions identify the following regarding existing conditions at or adjacent to the Site:
 - a. Those reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site that contain Technical Data.
 - b. Those drawings known to Owner of existing physical conditions at or adjacent to the Site, including those drawings depicting existing surface or subsurface structures at or adjacent to the Site (except Underground Facilities), that contain Technical Data.
 - c. Reports and drawings known to Owner relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions that have been identified at or adjacent to the Site.
 - d. Technical Data contained in such reports and drawings.
 - 2. Owner will make copies of reports and drawings referenced above available to any Bidder on request. These reports and drawings are not part of the Contract Documents, but the Technical Data contained therein upon whose accuracy Bidder is entitled to rely, as provided in the General Conditions, has been identified and established in the Supplementary Conditions. Bidder is responsible for any interpretation or conclusion Bidder draws from any Technical Data or any other data, interpretations, opinions, or information contained in such reports or shown or indicated in such drawings.
 - 3. If the Supplementary Conditions do not identify Technical Data, the default definition of Technical Data set forth in Article 1 of the General Conditions will apply.
 - 4. *Geotechnical Investigation Report:* The Bidding Documents contain a Geotechnical Investigation Report dated December 1, 2021 and prepared by Finding, Inc.
 - a. As set forth in the Supplementary Conditions, the Geotechnical Investigation Report describes certain select subsurface conditions that are anticipated to be encountered by Contractor during construction in specified locations ("Baseline Conditions"). The GBR is a Contract Document.
 - b. The Baseline Conditions in the Geotechnical Investigation Report are intended to reduce uncertainty and the degree of contingency in submitted Bids. However,

Bidders cannot rely solely on the Baseline Conditions. Bids should be based on a comprehensive approach that includes an independent review and analysis of the Geotechnical Investigation Report, all other Contract Documents, Technical Data, other available information, and observable surface conditions. Not all potential subsurface conditions are baselined.

- c. Nothing in the Geotechnical Investigation Report is intended to relieve Bidders of the responsibility to make their own determinations regarding construction costs, bidding strategies, and Bid prices, nor of the responsibility to select and be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction, and for safety precautions and programs incident thereto.
- d. As set forth in the Supplementary Conditions, the Geotechnical Investigation Report is a Contract Document containing data prepared by or for the Owner.
- 5.
- B. Underground Facilities: Underground Facilities are shown or indicated on the Drawings, pursuant to Paragraph 5.05 of the General Conditions, and not in the drawings referred to in Paragraph 5.02.A of these Instructions to Bidders. Information and data regarding the presence or location of Underground Facilities are not intended to be categorized, identified, or defined as Technical Data.
- 5.03 Other Site-related Documents
 - A. "Deleted"
 - B. "Deleted"
 - C. "Deleted"
 - D. "Deleted"
 - E. No other Site-related documents are available.
- 5.04 Site Visit and Testing by Bidders
 - A. "Deleted"
 - B. A Site visit is scheduled following the pre-bid conference. Maps to the Site will be available at the pre-Bid conference.
 - C. "Deleted"
 - D. Bidders visiting the Site are required to arrange their own transportation to the Site.
 - E. "Deleted"
 - F. "Deleted"
 - G. "Deleted"
 - H. "Deleted"
 - I. "Deleted"
- 5.05 Owner's Safety Program
 - A. Site visits and work at the Site may be governed by an Owner safety program. If an Owner safety program exists, it will be noted in the Supplementary Conditions.

5.06 Other Work at the Site

A. Reference is made to Article 8 of the Supplementary Conditions for the identification of the general nature of other work of which Owner is aware (if any) that is to be performed at the Site by Owner or others (such as utilities and other prime contractors) and relates to the Work contemplated by these Bidding Documents. If Owner is party to a written contract for such other work, then on request, Owner will provide to each Bidder access to examine such contracts (other than portions thereof related to price and other confidential matters), if any.

ARTICLE 6—BIDDER'S REPRESENTATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS

- 6.01 *Express Representations and Certifications in Bid Form, Agreement*
 - A. The Bid Form that each Bidder will submit contains express representations regarding the Bidder's examination of Project documentation, Site visit, and preparation of the Bid, and certifications regarding lack of collusion or fraud in connection with the Bid. Bidder should review these representations and certifications, and assure that Bidder can make the representations and certifications in good faith, before executing and submitting its Bid.
 - B. If Bidder is awarded the Contract, Bidder (as Contractor) will make similar express representations and certifications when it executes the Agreement.

ARTICLE 7—INTERPRETATIONS AND ADDENDA

- 7.01 Owner, through the Engineer, may issue Addenda to clarify, correct, supplement, or change the Bidding Documents.
- 7.02 Bidder shall submit all questions about the meaning or intent of the Bidding Documents to Engineer in writing. Contact information and submittal procedures for such questions are as follows:
 - A. Via email to Bill Gross, PE at <u>bgross@rkk.com</u> and copy John C. Moore, PE at <u>jmoore@rkk.com</u>; Cathy Willets at <u>cwillets@emmitsburgmd.gov</u>; and Madeline Shaw at mshaw@emmitsburgmd.gov.
- 7.03 Interpretations or clarifications considered necessary by Engineer in response to such questions will be issued by Addenda delivered to all registered plan holders. Questions received less than seven days prior to the date for opening of Bids may not be answered.
- 7.04 Only responses set forth in an Addendum will be binding. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. Responses to questions are not part of the Contract Documents unless set forth in an Addendum that expressly modifies or supplements the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 8—BID SECURITY

8.01 A Bid must be accompanied by Bid security made payable to Owner in an amount of Five (5) percent of Bidder's maximum Bid price (determined by adding the base bid and all alternates) and in the form of a Bid bond issued by a surety meeting the requirements of Paragraph 6.01 of the

General Conditions. Such Bid bond will be issued in the form included in the Bidding Documents. Bid Security must be at least 5% of the Bidder's maximum Bid price.

- 8.02 The Bid security of the apparent Successful Bidder will be retained until Owner awards the contract to such Bidder, and such Bidder has executed the Contract, furnished the required Contract security, and met the other conditions of the Notice of Award, whereupon the Bid security will be released. If the Successful Bidder fails to execute and deliver the Contract and furnish the required Contract security within 15 days after the Notice of Award, Owner may consider Bidder to be in default, annul the Notice of Award, and the Bid security of that Bidder will be forfeited, in whole in the case of a penal sum bid bond, and to the extent of Owner's damages in the case of a damages-form bond. Such forfeiture will be Owner's exclusive remedy if Bidder defaults.
- 8.03 The Bid security of other Bidders that Owner believes to have a reasonable chance of receiving the award may be retained by Owner until the earlier of 7 days after the Effective Date of the Contract or 61 days after the Bid opening, whereupon Bid security furnished by such Bidders will be released.
- 8.04 Bid security of other Bidders that Owner believes do not have a reasonable chance of receiving the award will be released within 7 days after the Bid opening.

ARTICLE 9—CONTRACT TIMES

- 9.01 The number of days within which, or the dates by which, the Work is to be (a) substantially completed and (b) ready for final payment, and (c) Milestones (if any) are to be achieved, are set forth in the Agreement.
- 9.02 "Deleted"
- 9.03 Provisions for liquidated damages, if any, for failure to timely attain a Milestone, Substantial Completion, or completion of the Work in readiness for final payment, are set forth in the Agreement.

ARTICLE 10—SUBSTITUTE AND "OR EQUAL" ITEMS

- 10.01 "Deleted"
- 10.02 The Contract for the Work, as awarded, will be on the basis of materials and equipment specified or described in the Bidding Documents, and those "or-equal" or substitute or materials and equipment subsequently approved by Engineer prior to the submittal of Bids and identified by Addendum. No item of material or equipment will be considered by Engineer as an "or-equal" or substitute unless written request for approval has been submitted by Bidder and has been received by Engineer within 10 days of the issuance of the Advertisement for Bids or invitation to Bidders. Each such request must comply with the requirements of Paragraphs 7.05 and 7.06 of the General Conditions, and the review of the request will be governed by the principles in those paragraphs. Each such request shall include the Manufacturer's Certification for Compliance with AIS. Refer to the Manufacturer's Certification form provided in these construction Contract Documents. The burden of proof of the merit of the proposed item is upon Bidder. Engineer's decision of approval or disapproval of a proposed item will be final. If Engineer approves any such proposed item, such approval will be set forth in an Addendum issued to all registered Bidders. Bidders cannot rely upon approvals made in any other manner. Substitutes and "or-equal"

materials and equipment may be proposed by Contractor in accordance with Paragraphs 7.05 and 7.06 of the General Conditions after the Effective Date of the Contract. Each such request shall include Manufacturer's Certification letter to document compliance with AIS requirements of Section 746 of Title VII of the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2017 (Division A - Agriculture, Rural Development, Food and Drug Administration, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2017) and subsequent statutes mandating domestic preference, if applicable. Refer to Manufacturer's Certification Letter provided in these Contract Documents.

10.03 All prices that Bidder sets forth in its Bid will be based on the presumption that the Contractor will furnish the materials and equipment specified or described in the Bidding Documents, as supplemented by Addenda. Any assumptions regarding the possibility of post-Bid approvals of "or-equal" or substitution requests are made at Bidder's sole risk.

ARTICLE 11—SUBCONTRACTORS, SUPPLIERS, AND OTHERS

- 11.01 "Deleted"
- 11.02 The apparent Successful Bidder, and any other Bidder so requested, must submit to Owner a list of the Subcontractors or Suppliers proposed for the following portions of the Work within five days after Bid opening:

A. Cast-in-place concrete, electrical, pre-engineered metal building, dissolved air floatation clarifier supplier.

- 11.03 If requested by Owner, such list must be accompanied by an experience statement with pertinent information regarding similar projects and other evidence of qualification for each such Subcontractor or Supplier. If Owner or Engineer, after due investigation, has reasonable objection to any proposed Subcontractor, Supplier, individual, or entity, Owner may, before the Notice of Award is given, request apparent Successful Bidder to submit an acceptable substitute, without an increase in Bid price.
- 11.04 If apparent Successful Bidder declines to make any such substitution, Owner may award the Contract to the next lowest Bidder that proposes to use acceptable Subcontractors and Suppliers. Declining to make requested substitutions will not constitute grounds for forfeiture of the Bid security of any Bidder.
- 11.05 The Contractor shall not award work to Subcontractor(s) in excess of the limits stated in SC 7.07A.

ARTICLE 12—PREPARATION OF BID

- 12.01 The Bid Form is included with the Bidding Documents.
 - A. All blanks on the Bid Form must be completed in ink and the Bid Form signed in ink. Erasures or alterations must be initialed in ink by the person signing the Bid Form. A Bid price must be indicated for each section, Bid item, alternate, adjustment unit price item, and unit price item listed therein.
 - B. If the Bid Form expressly indicates that submitting pricing on a specific alternate item is optional, and Bidder elects to not furnish pricing for such optional alternate item, then Bidder may enter the words "No Bid" or "Not Applicable."
- 12.02 If Bidder has obtained the Bidding Documents as Electronic Documents, then Bidder shall prepare its Bid on a paper copy of the Bid Form printed from the Electronic Documents version of the

Bidding Documents. The printed copy of the Bid Form must be clearly legible, printed on 8½ inch by 11-inch paper and as closely identical in appearance to the Electronic Document version of the Bid Form as may be practical. The Owner reserves the right to accept Bid Forms which nominally vary in appearance from the original paper version of the Bid Form, providing that all required information and submittals are included with the Bid.

- 12.03 A Bid by a corporation must be executed in the corporate name by a corporate officer (whose title must appear under the signature), accompanied by evidence of authority to sign. The corporate address and state of incorporation must be shown. The corporate seal must be affixed and attested by the corporate secretary or an assistant corporate secretary.
- 12.04 A Bid by a partnership must be executed in the partnership name and signed by a partner (whose title must appear under the signature), accompanied by evidence of authority to sign. The official address of the partnership must be shown.
- 12.05 A Bid by a limited liability company must be executed in the name of the firm by a member or other authorized person and accompanied by evidence of authority to sign. The state of formation of the firm and the official address of the firm must be shown.
- 12.06 A Bid by an individual must show the Bidder's name and official address.
- 12.07 A Bid by a joint venture must be executed by an authorized representative of each joint venturer in the manner indicated on the Bid Form. The joint venture must have been formally established prior to submittal of a Bid, and the official address of the joint venture must be shown.
- 12.08 All names must be printed in ink below the signatures.
- 12.09 The Bid must contain an acknowledgment of receipt of all Addenda, the numbers of which must be filled in on the Bid Form.
- 12.10 Postal and e-mail addresses and telephone number for communications regarding the Bid must be shown.
- 12.11 The Bid must contain evidence of Bidder's authority to do business in the state where the Project is located, or Bidder must certify in writing that it will obtain such authority within the time for acceptance of Bids and attach such certification to the Bid.
- 12.12 If Bidder is required to be licensed to submit a Bid or perform the Work in the state where the Project is located, the Bid must contain evidence of Bidder's licensure, or Bidder must certify in writing that it will obtain such licensure within the time for acceptance of Bids and attach such certification to the Bid. Bidder's state contractor license number, if any, must also be shown on the Bid Form.

ARTICLE 13—BASIS OF BID

- 13.01 Lump Sum
 - A. Bidders must submit a Bid on a lump sum basis as set forth in the Bid Form.

- 13.02 "Deleted"
- 13.03 "Deleted"
- 13.04 "Deleted"
- 13.05 Unit Price
 - A. Bidders must submit a Bid on a unit price basis for each item of Work listed in the unit price section of the Bid Form.
 - B. The "Bid Price" (sometimes referred to as the extended price) for each unit price Bid item will be the product of the "Estimated Quantity", which Owner or its representative has set forth in the Bid Form, for the item and the corresponding "Bid Unit Price" offered by the Bidder. The total of all unit price Bid items will be the sum of these "Bid Prices"; such total will be used by Owner for Bid comparison purposes. The final quantities and Contract Price will be determined in accordance with Paragraph 13.03 of the General Conditions.
 - C. Discrepancies between the multiplication of units of Work and unit prices will be resolved in favor of the unit prices. Discrepancies between the indicated sum of any column of figures and the correct sum thereof will be resolved in favor of the correct sum.
- 13.06 Allowances
 - A. For cash allowances the Bid price must include such amounts as the Bidder deems proper for Contractor's overhead, costs, profit, and other expenses on account of cash allowances, if any, named in the Contract Documents, in accordance with Paragraph 13.02.B of the General Conditions.
- 13.07 "Deleted"

ARTICLE 14—SUBMITTAL OF BID

- 14.01 The Bidding Documents include one separate unbound copy of the Bid Form, and, if required, the Bid Bond Form. The unbound copy of the Bid Form is to be completed and submitted with the Bid security and the other documents required to be submitted under the terms of Article 2 of the Bid Form.
- 14.02 A Bid must be received no later than the date and time prescribed and at the place indicated in the Advertisement or invitation to bid and must be enclosed in a plainly marked package with the Project title, and, if applicable, the designated portion of the Project for which the Bid is submitted, the name and address of Bidder, and must be accompanied by the Bid security and other required documents. If a Bid is sent by mail or other delivery system, the sealed envelope containing the Bid must be enclosed in a separate package plainly marked on the outside with the notation "BID ENCLOSED." A mailed Bid must be addressed to the location designated in the Advertisement.
- 14.03 Bids received after the date and time prescribed for the opening of bids, or not submitted at the correct location or in the designated manner, will not be accepted and will be returned to the Bidder unopened.

ARTICLE 15-MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL OF BID

- 15.01 An unopened Bid may be withdrawn by an appropriate document duly executed in the same manner that a Bid must be executed and delivered to the place where Bids are to be submitted prior to the date and time for the opening of Bids. Upon receipt of such notice, the unopened Bid will be returned to the Bidder.
- 15.02 If a Bidder wishes to modify its Bid prior to Bid opening, Bidder must withdraw its initial Bid in the manner specified in Paragraph 15.01 and submit a new Bid prior to the date and time for the opening of Bids.
- 15.03 If within 24 hours after Bids are opened any Bidder files a duly signed written notice with Owner and promptly thereafter demonstrates to the reasonable satisfaction of Owner that there was a material and substantial mistake in the preparation of its Bid, the Bidder may withdraw its Bid, and the Bid security will be returned. Thereafter, if the Work is rebid, the Bidder will be disqualified from further bidding on the Work.

ARTICLE 16—OPENING OF BIDS

16.01 Bids will be opened at the time and place indicated in the advertisement or invitation to bid and, unless obviously non-responsive, read aloud publicly. An abstract of the amounts of the base Bids and major alternates, if any, will be made available to Bidders after the opening of Bids.

ARTICLE 17—BIDS TO REMAIN SUBJECT TO ACCEPTANCE

17.01 All Bids will remain subject to acceptance for the period of time stated in the Bid Form, but Owner may, in its sole discretion, release any Bid and return the Bid security prior to the end of this period.

ARTICLE 18—EVALUATION OF BIDS AND AWARD OF CONTRACT

- 18.01 Owner reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, including without limitation, nonconforming, nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional Bids. Owner also reserves the right to waive all minor Bid informalities not involving price, time, or changes in the Work.
- 18.02 Owner will reject the Bid of any Bidder that Owner finds, after reasonable inquiry and evaluation, to not be responsible.
- 18.03 If Bidder purports to add terms or conditions to its Bid, takes exception to any provision of the Bidding Documents, or attempts to alter the contents of the Contract Documents for purposes of the Bid, whether in the Bid itself or in a separate communication to Owner or Engineer, then Owner will reject the Bid as nonresponsive.
- 18.04 If Owner awards the contract for the Work, such award will be to the responsible Bidder submitting the lowest responsive Bid.
- 18.05 Evaluation of Bids
 - A. In evaluating Bids, Owner will consider whether the Bids comply with the prescribed requirements, and such alternates, unit prices, and other data, as may be requested in the Bid Form or prior to the Notice of Award.

- B. In the comparison of Bids, alternates will be applied in the same order of priority as listed in the Bid Form. To determine the Bid prices for purposes of comparison, Owner will announce to all bidders a "Base Bid plus alternates" budget after receiving all Bids, but prior to opening them. For comparison purposes alternates will be accepted, following the order of priority established in the Bid Form, until doing so would cause the budget to be exceeded. After determination of the Successful Bidder based on this comparative process and on the responsiveness, responsibility, and other factors set forth in these Instructions, the award may be made to said Successful Bidder on its base Bid and any combination of its additive alternate Bids for which Owner determines funds will be available at the time of award.
- C. For determination of the apparent low Bidder(s) when sectional bids are submitted, Bids will be compared on the basis of the aggregate of the Bids for separate sections and the Bids for combined sections that result in the lowest total amount for all of the Work.
- D. For the determination of the apparent low Bidder when unit price bids are submitted, Bids will be compared on the basis of the total of the products of the estimated quantity of each item and unit price Bid for that item, together with any lump sum items.
- E. "Deleted"
- F. "Deleted"
- 18.06 In evaluating whether a Bidder is responsible, Owner will consider the qualifications of the Bidder and may consider the qualifications and experience of Subcontractors and Suppliers proposed for those portions of the Work for which the identity of Subcontractors and Suppliers must be submitted as provided in the Bidding Documents.
- 18.07 Owner may conduct such investigations as Owner deems necessary to establish the responsibility, qualifications, and financial ability of Bidders and any proposed Subcontractors or Suppliers.

ARTICLE 19—BONDS AND INSURANCE

- 19.01 Article 6 of the General Conditions, as may be modified by the Supplementary Conditions, sets forth Owner's requirements as to performance and payment bonds, other required bonds (if any), and insurance. When the Successful Bidder delivers the executed Agreement to Owner, it must be accompanied by required bonds and insurance documentation.
- 19.02 Article 8, Bid Security, of these Instructions, addresses any requirements for providing bid bonds as part of the bidding process.

ARTICLE 20—SIGNING OF AGREEMENT

20.01 When Owner issues a Notice of Award to the Successful Bidder, it will be accompanied by the unexecuted counterparts of the Agreement along with the other Contract Documents as identified in the Agreement. Within 15 days thereafter, Successful Bidder must execute and deliver the required number of counterparts of the Agreement and any bonds and insurance documentation required to be delivered by the Contract Documents to Owner. Within 10 days thereafter, Owner will deliver one fully executed counterpart of the Agreement to Successful

Bidder, together with printed and electronic copies of the Contract Documents as stated in Paragraph 2.02 of the General Conditions.

ARTICLE 21—SALES AND USE TAXES

21.01 Owner is NOT exempt from **Maryland** state sales and use taxes on materials and equipment to be incorporated in the Work. Said taxes shall be included in the Bid. Refer to Paragraph SC-7.10 of the Supplementary Conditions for additional information.

ARTICLE 22—CONTRACTS TO BE ASSIGNED

22.01 Recipient shall not entertain the use of the businesses that are listed on the "Excluded Parties List System" at www.sam.gov in accordance with 2 CFR Part 1532 and Subpart B and C of 2 CFR Part 180.

ARTICLE 23—FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

- 23.01 If the contract price is in excess of \$100,000, provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act at 29 CFR 5.5(b) apply.
- 23.02 Federal requirements at Article 19 of the Supplementary Conditions apply to this Contract.

23.03 American Iron and Steel requirements apply to this project.

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

BID OPENING REQUIREMENTS

Guidelines for Bid Opening Checklist:

The bid opening procedure shall be a two envelope system. The system shall consist of two separate and distinct envelopes, each with proper identification. The envelopes shall be identified as **"Bid Documents"** and the other as **"Bid Form"**. Both shall be submitted in a single large envelope, labeled with Contractor's name, address, and name of project with contract numbers. The first envelope shall contain <u>four (4) copies</u> the following items complete as shown in the following checklist:

Bid Opening Requirement Checklist

- 1. Bid Submitted on Time
- 2. Required Bid security in the form of a Bid Bond (EJCDC No. C-430) or Certified Check (circle type of security provided);
- 3. Evidence of authority to do business in the state or jurisdiction of the Project; or a written covenant to obtain such license within the time frame for acceptance of Bids:
- 4. Contractor's License No. for State of Maryland;
- 5. List of References;
- 6. List of Sub-Contractors;
- 7. Certificate of Receipt of Addenda;
- 8. Affidavit of Qualification to Bid;
- If Bid amount exceeds \$10,000, signed Compliance Statement (RD 400-6). Refer to specific equal opportunity requirements set forth in paragraph 18.10 of the General Conditions;
- 10. If Bid amount exceeds \$25,000, signed Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion – Lower Tier Covered Transactions (AD-1048).
- 11. If Bid amount exceeds \$100,000, signed RD Instruction 1940-Q, Exhibit A-1, Certification for Contracts, Grants, and Loans. NOT REQUIRED
- 12. Free Competitive Bidding Affidavit:
- 13. Qualification Statement

The second envelope ("Bid Form") shall consist of <u>four (4) copies</u> solely of the bid form. In the event that <u>all</u> the items are not complete on the Checklist from the first envelope, then the second envelope shall be returned to the Contractor not opened. At that time, the Engineer will declare the bidder non-responsive. Then, the lowest responsive, responsible bidder shall be the bidder who has completed <u>all</u> the requirements of the first envelope and has the lowest total on his bid forms.

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK

BID FORM FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

The terms used in this Bid with initial capital letters have the meanings stated in the Instructions to Bidders, the General Conditions, and the Supplementary Conditions.

ARTICLE 1—OWNER AND BIDDER

- 1.01 This Bid is submitted to: **Town of Emmitsburg, Maryland.**
- 1.02 The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an Agreement with Owner in the form included in the Bidding Documents to perform all Work as specified or indicated in the Bidding Documents for the prices and within the times indicated in this Bid and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents.

ARTICLE 2—ATTACHMENTS TO THIS BID

- 2.01 The following documents are submitted with and made a condition of this Bid:
 - A. Required Bid security;
 - B. List of Proposed Subcontractors;
 - C. List of Proposed Suppliers;
 - D. Evidence of authority to do business in the state of the Project; or a written covenant to obtain such authority within the time for acceptance of Bids;
 - E. Contractor's license number as evidence of Bidder's State Contractor's License or a covenant by Bidder to obtain said license within the time for acceptance of Bids;
 - F. Required Bidder Qualification Statement with supporting data;
 - G. If Bid amount exceeds \$10,000, signed Compliance Statement (RD 400-6). Refer to specific equal opportunity requirements set forth in the Supplementary Conditions of the Construction Contract (EJCDC C-800);
 - H. If Bid amount exceeds \$25,000, signed Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion Lower Tier Covered Transactions (AD-1048);
 - I. If Bid amount exceeds \$100,000, signed RD Instruction 1940-Q Exhibit A-1, Certification for Contracts, Grants, and Loans." NOT REQUIRED. NO USDA FUNDING
 - J. EEO Certification;
 - K. List of References; and
 - L. Certification of Receipt of Addenda;

ARTICLE 3—BASIS OF BID—LUMP SUM BID AND UNIT PRICES

- 3.01 Lump Sum Bids
 - A. Bidder will complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents for the following lump sum (stipulated) price(s), together with any Unit Prices indicated in Paragraph 3.02:

1. Lump Sum Price (Single Lump Sum)

	Lump Sum Bid Price	\$
--	--------------------	----

3.02 Unit Price Bids

A. Bidder will perform the following Work at the indicated unit prices:

ltem No.	Description	Unit	Estimated Quantity	Bid Unit Price	Bid Amount
	N/A				\$
	N/A				\$
	N/A				\$
	N/A				\$
	N/A				\$
Total o	f All Unit Price Bid Items				\$

- B. Bidder acknowledges that:
 - 1. each Bid Unit Price includes an amount considered by Bidder to be adequate to cover Contractor's overhead and profit for each separately identified item, and
 - 2. estimated quantities are not guaranteed, and are solely for the purpose of comparison of Bids, and final payment for all Unit Price Work will be based on actual quantities, determined as provided in the Contract Documents.

3.03 Total Bid Price (Lump Sum and Unit Prices)

Total Bid Price (Total of all Lump Sum and Unit Price Bids)	\$	
---	----	--

ARTICLE 4—"DELETED"

ARTICLE 5— "DELETED"

ARTICLE 6—TIME OF COMPLETION

- 6.01 Bidder agrees that the Work will be substantially complete and will be completed and ready for final payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions on or before the dates or within the number of calendar days indicated in the Agreement.
- 6.02 "Deleted"
- 6.03 "Deleted"
- 6.04 Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to liquidated damages.

ARTICLE 7—BIDDER'S ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: ACCEPTANCE PERIOD, INSTRUCTIONS, AND RECEIPT OF ADDENDA

- 7.01 **Bid Acceptance Period**
 - A. This Bid will remain subject to acceptance for 90 days after the Bid opening, or for such longer period of time that Bidder may agree to in writing upon request of Owner.

7.02 *Instructions to Bidders*

A. Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders, including without limitation those dealing with the disposition of Bid security.

7.03 Receipt of Addenda

A. Bidder hereby acknowledges receipt of the following Addenda:

Addendum Number	Addendum Date

ARTICLE 8—BIDDER'S REPRESENTATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS

8.01 *Bidder's Representations*

- A. In submitting this Bid, Bidder represents the following:
 - 1. Bidder has examined and carefully studied the Bidding Documents, including Addenda.
 - 2. Bidder has visited the Site, conducted a thorough visual examination of the Site and adjacent areas, and become familiar with the general, local, and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.
 - 3. Bidder is familiar with all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.
 - 4. Bidder has carefully studied the reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site and the drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, with respect to the Technical Data in such reports and drawings.
 - 5. Bidder has carefully studied the reports and drawings relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if any, at or adjacent to the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings.
 - 6. Bidder has considered the information known to Bidder itself; information commonly known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Bidding Documents; and the Technical Data identified in the Supplementary Conditions or by definition, with respect to the effect of such information, observations, and Technical Data on (a) the cost, progress, and performance of the Work; (b) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Bidder, if selected as Contractor; and (c) Bidder's (Contractor's) safety precautions and programs.
 - 7. Based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph, Bidder agrees that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Times, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract.

- 8. Bidder is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents.
- 9. Bidder has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Bidder has discovered in the Bidding Documents, and of discrepancies between Site conditions and the Contract Documents, and the written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Contractor.
- 10. The Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work.
- 11. The submission of this Bid constitutes an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that without exception the Bid and all prices in the Bid are premised upon performing and furnishing the Work required by the Bidding Documents.

8.02 Bidder's Certifications

- A. The Bidder certifies the following:
 - 1. This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed individual or entity and is not submitted in conformity with any collusive agreement or rules of any group, association, organization, or corporation.
 - 2. Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid.
 - 3. Bidder has not solicited or induced any individual or entity to refrain from bidding.
 - 4. Bidder has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing for the Contract. For the purposes of this Paragraph 8.02.A:
 - a. Corrupt practice means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process.
 - b. Fraudulent practice means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to influence the bidding process to the detriment of Owner, (b) to establish bid prices at artificial non-competitive levels, or (c) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition.
 - c. Collusive practice means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels.
 - d. Coercive practice means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect the execution of the Contract.

BIDDER hereby submits this Bid as set forth above:

Bidder:

	(typed or printed name of organization)
By:	
	(individual's signature)
Name:	(typed or printed)
Title:	(typed of printed)
The.	(typed or printed)
Date:	
	(typed or printed)
If Bidder is	a corporation, a partnership, or a joint venture, attach evidence of authority to sign.
Attest:	
	(individual's signature)
Name:	
Title:	(typed or printed)
nue.	(typed or printed)
Date:	
	(typed or printed)
Address f	or giving notices:
Bidder's (`antact.
Name:	(typed or printed)
Title:	
	(typed or printed)
Phone:	
Email:	
Address:	
Biddor's (Contractor License No.: (if applicable)
BIUUEI S C	

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

BID BOND (PENAL SUM FORM)

Bidder	Surety	
Name:	Name:	
Address (principal place of business): Address (principal place of bu	usiness):
Owner	Bid	
Name: Town of Emmitsburg	, Maryland Project (name and location):	
Address (principal place of business): Water Treatment Plant C	Clarifier
300A South Seton Avenue		
Emmitsburg, Maryland 21727		
	Bid Due Date:	
Bond		
Bond Penal Sum:		
Penal Sum: Date of Bond:	o be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms	set forth in this Bid Bond,
Penal Sum: Date of Bond: Surety and Bidder, intending t	o be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms be duly executed by an authorized officer, age	
Penal Sum: Date of Bond: Surety and Bidder, intending t		
Penal Sum: Date of Bond: Surety and Bidder, intending t do each cause this Bid Bond to Bidder	be duly executed by an authorized officer, age Surety	nt, or representative.
Penal Sum: Date of Bond: Surety and Bidder, intending to do each cause this Bid Bond to Bidder (Full formal name of B	be duly executed by an authorized officer, age Surety (Full formal name of	
Penal Sum: Date of Bond: Surety and Bidder, intending t do each cause this Bid Bond to Bidder	be duly executed by an authorized officer, age Surety (Full formal name of By:	nt, or representative.
Penal Sum: Date of Bond: Surety and Bidder, intending to do each cause this Bid Bond to Bidder (Full formal name of B By:	be duly executed by an authorized officer, age Surety (Full formal name of By:	nt, or representative. f Surety) (corporate seal)
Penal Sum: Date of Bond: Surety and Bidder, intending to do each cause this Bid Bond to Bidder (Full formal name of B By: (Signatu	be duly executed by an authorized officer, agen Surety (Full formal name of By: (Signature) Name:	nt, or representative. f Surety) (corporate seal)
Penal Sum: Date of Bond: Surety and Bidder, intending to do each cause this Bid Bond to Bidder (Full formal name of B By: (Signatu Name:	be duly executed by an authorized officer, agen Surety (Full formal name of By: (Signature) Name:	nt, or representative. f Surety) (corporate seal) (Attach Power of Attorney)
Penal Sum: Date of Bond: Surety and Bidder, intending to do each cause this Bid Bond to Bidder (Full formal name of B By: (Signatu Name: (Printed or Title:	be duly executed by an authorized officer, agen Surety (Full formal name of By: (Signature) (Signatu	nt, or representative. f Surety) (corporate seal) (Attach Power of Attorney)
Penal Sum: Date of Bond: Surety and Bidder, intending to do each cause this Bid Bond to Bidder (Full formal name of B By: (Signatu Name: (Printed or Title:	be duly executed by an authorized officer, agen Surety (Full formal name of By: (Signature) (Signatu	nt, or representative. f Surety) (corporate seal) (Attach Power of Attorney)
Penal Sum: Date of Bond: Surety and Bidder, intending to do each cause this Bid Bond to Bidder (Full formal name of B (Signatu Name: Attest: (Signatu Name:	be duly executed by an authorized officer, agen Surety idder) (Full formal name of idder) By: (Signature) Name: (Signature) typed) (I Title: (I tre) Attest: Name: (I	nt, or representative. f Surety) (corporate seal) (Attach Power of Attorney) Printed or typed) (Signature)
Penal Sum: Date of Bond: Surety and Bidder, intending to do each cause this Bid Bond to Bidder (Full formal name of B (Signatu Name: (Printed or Title: Attest: (Signatu	be duly executed by an authorized officer, agen Surety idder) (Full formal name of idder) By: (Signature) Name: (Signature) typed) (I Title: (I tre) Attest: Name: (I	nt, or representative. f Surety) (corporate seal) (Attach Power of Attorney) Printed or typed)

- Bidder and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns to pay to Owner upon default of Bidder the penal sum set forth on the face of this Bond. Payment of the penal sum is the extent of Bidder's and Surety's liability. Recovery of such penal sum under the terms of this Bond will be Owner's sole and exclusive remedy upon default of Bidder.
- 2. Default of Bidder occurs upon the failure of Bidder to deliver within the time required by the Bidding Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents.
- 3. This obligation will be null and void if:
 - 3.1. Owner accepts Bidder's Bid and Bidder delivers within the time required by the Bidding Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents, or
 - 3.2. All Bids are rejected by Owner, or
 - 3.3. Owner fails to issue a Notice of Award to Bidder within the time specified in the Bidding Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Bidder and, if applicable, consented to by Surety when required by Paragraph 5 hereof).
- 4. Payment under this Bond will be due and payable upon default of Bidder and within 30 calendar days after receipt by Bidder and Surety of written notice of default from Owner, which notice will be given with reasonable promptness, identifying this Bond and the Project and including a statement of the amount due.
- 5. Surety waives notice of any and all defenses based on or arising out of any time extension to issue Notice of Award agreed to in writing by Owner and Bidder, provided that the total time for issuing Notice of Award including extensions does not in the aggregate exceed 120 days from the Bid due date without Surety's written consent.
- 6. No suit or action will be commenced under this Bond prior to 30 calendar days after the notice of default required in Paragraph 4 above is received by Bidder and Surety, and in no case later than one year after the Bid due date.
- 7. Any suit or action under this Bond will be commenced only in a court of competent jurisdiction located in the state in which the Project is located.
- 8. Notices required hereunder must be in writing and sent to Bidder and Surety at their respective addresses shown on the face of this Bond. Such notices may be sent by personal delivery, commercial courier, or by United States Postal Service registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and will be deemed to be effective upon receipt by the party concerned.
- 9. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effective Power of Attorney evidencing the authority of the officer, agent, or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of Surety to execute, seal, and deliver such Bond and bind the Surety thereby.
- 10. This Bond is intended to conform to all applicable statutory requirements. Any applicable requirement of any applicable statute that has been omitted from this Bond will be deemed to be included herein as if set forth at length. If any provision of this Bond conflicts with any applicable statute, then the provision of said statute governs and the remainder of this Bond that is not in conflict therewith continues in full force and effect.
- 11. The term "Bid" as used herein includes a Bid, offer, or proposal as applicable.

INSERT COPY OF

CONTRACTOR'S LICENSE

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK

INSERT

LIST OF REFERENCES

List at least three (3) references for similar projects preferably.

Name of Company:		
Address:		
Contact Person:		
Phone Number:		
Name of Company:		
Address:		
Contact Person:		
Phone Number:		
Name of Company:		
Address:		
Contact Person:		

Phone Number:_____

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK

ENVELOPE NO. 1 WATER TREATMENT PLANT CLARIFIER

INSERT

PROPOSED LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

Name of Company:			
Address:			
Contact Person:			
Phone Number:			
Name of Company:			
Address:			
Contact Person:			
Phone Number:			
Name of Company:			
Address:			
Contact Person:			
Phone Number:			

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK

CERTIFICATION OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA

In submitting this Bid, Bidder Represents, as more fully set forth in the Agreement, that:

(a) Bidder has examined copies of all the Contract Documents and the following addenda:

Date	Number

(Receipt of all of which is hereby acknowledged) and also copies of the Advertisement or Invitation to Bid and the Instruction of Bidders.

- (b) Bidder has examined the site and locality where the work is to be performed, the legal requirements (federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations) and the conditions affecting cost, progress or performance of the work and has made such independent investigations as Bidder deems necessary.
- (c) This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed person, firm or corporation and is not submitted in conformity with any agreement or rules of any group, association, organization or corporation: Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid: Bidder has not solicited or induced any person, firm or corporation to refrain from bidding: and Bidder has not sought by collusion to obtain from himself any advantage over any other Bidder or over Owner.

Contractor

Signature

Date

Name and Title of Signer (Please Type)

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK

ENVELOPE NO. 1 WATER TREATMENT PLANT CLARIFIER

AFFIDAVIT OF QUALIFICATION TO BID

I hereby affirm that:

1.	I am the		_ and the duly authorize	ed representative
	of the firm of	(Title)		_Whose address
		(Name of Corporation)		
	ls			and that I

possess the legal authority to make this affidavit on behalf of myself and the firm for which I am acting.

- 2. Except as described in Paragraph 3 below, neither I nor the above firm, nor to the best of my knowledge, any of its officers, directors, or partners, or any of its employees directly involved in obtaining contracts with the State or any county, bi-county or multi-county agency, or subdivision of the State have been convicted of, or have pleaded nolo contendere to a charge of, or have during the course of an official investigation or other proceeding admitted in writing or under oath acts or omissions which constitute bribery, attempted bribery, or conspiracy to bribe under the provisions of Article 27 of the Annotated Code of Maryland or under the laws of any state or the federal government (conduct prior to July 1, 1977 is not required to be reported).
- 3. (State "none" or, as appropriate, list any conviction, plea, or admission described in paragraph 2 above, with the date; court, official, or administrative body; the individuals involved and their position with the firm, and the sentence or disposition, if any.)

ENVELOPE NO. 1 WATER TREATMENT PLANT CLARIFIER

I acknowledge that this affidavit is to be furnished to the Town of Oakland and, where appropriate, to the Board of Public Works and to the Attorney General under Section 16D of Article 78A of the Annotated Code of Maryland. I acknowledge that, if the representations set forth in this affidavit are not true and correct, the Town of Oakland may terminate any contract awarded and take any other appropriate action. I further acknowledge that I am executing this affidavit in compliance with Section 16D of Article 78A of the Annotated Code of Maryland, which provides that certain persons who have been convicted of or have admitted to bribery, attempted bribery, or conspiracy to bribe may be disqualified, either by operation of law or after a hearing, from entering into contracts with the State or any of its agencies or subdivisions.

I do solemnly declare and affirm under the penalties of perjury that the contents of this affidavit are true and correct.

(Signature)

(Date)

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, 7 CFR Part 3017, Section 3017.510, Participants' responsibilities. The regulations were published as Part IV of the January 30, 1989, <u>Federal Register</u> (pages 4722-4733). Copies of the regulations may be obtained by contacting the Department of Agriculture agency with which this transaction originated.

(BEFORE COMPLETING CERTIFICATION, READ INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE)

- (1) The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.
- (2) Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

Organization Name

PR/Award Number or Project Name

Name(s) and Title(s) of Authorized Representative(s)

Signature(s)

Date

Instructions for Certification

1. By signing and submitting this form, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the certification set out on the reverse side in accordance with these instructions.

2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

3. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

4. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the person to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.

5. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this form that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated.

6. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this form that it will include this clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

7* A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List.

8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

ENVELOPE NO. 1

RD Instruction 1940-Q Exhibit A-1

CERTIFICATION FOR CONTRACTS, GRANTS AND LOANS

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant or Federal loan, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant or loan.

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant or loan, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form - LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," in accordance with its instructions.

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including contracts, subcontracts, and subgrants under grants and loans) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

(signature)

(name)

(date)

(title)

000

(08-21-91) PN 171

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK

ENVELOPE NO. 1 WATER TREATMENT PLANT CLARIFIER

FREE COMPETITIVE BIDDING AFFIDAVIT

Section 112 (c) of Title 23, United States Code

State of	
County of	
I,	(Contractor) by
(N	ame and title of authorized representative), being
duly sworn to depose, say and certify: That	said contractor has not, either directly or indirectly,
entered into any agreement, participated in a	any collusion, or otherwise taken any action in
restraint of free competitive bidding in conr	nection with the contract for Project
in	County.
	Contractor
	Name and Title of Authorized Representative
Taken, subscribed and sworn to me before t	

Notary Public

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK

This document has important legal consequences; consultation with an attorney is encouraged with respect to its use or modification. This document should be adapted to the particular circumstances of the contemplated Project and the controlling Laws and Regulations.

QUALIFICATIONS STATEMENT









Endorsed By



Copyright[©] 2018

National Society of Professional Engineers 1420 King Street, Alexandria, VA 22314-2794 (703) 684-2882

www.nspe.org

American Council of Engineering Companies 1015 15th Street N.W., Washington, DC 20005 (202) 347-7474

www.acec.org

American Society of Civil Engineers 1801 Alexander Bell Drive, Reston, VA 20191-4400 (800) 548-2723 www.asce.org

The copyright for this EJCDC document is owned jointly by the three sponsoring organizations listed above. The National Society of Professional Engineers is the Copyright Administrator for the EJCDC documents; please direct all inquiries regarding EJCDC copyrights to NSPE.

EJCDC C-451, Qualifications Statement. Copyright[©] 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

ARTICLE 1—GENERAL INFORMATION

1.01 Provide contact information for the Business:

Legal Na	ame of Business:			
Corpora	te Office			
Name:			Phone number:	
Title:			Email address:	
Busines	s address of corpo	rate office:		
Local Of	fice			
Name:			Phone number:	
Title:			Email address:	
Busines	s address of local o	office:	· · ·	
Name: Title:		office:		

1.02 Provide information on the Business's organizational structure:

Fo	Form of Business: Sole Proprietorship Partnership Corporation						
	□ Limited Liability Company □ Joint Venture comprised of the following companies:						
	1.						
	2.						
	3.						
Pi	ovide a separate (Qualificati	on Statement for	r each Joint Ventu	irer.		
D	Date Business was formed: State in which Business was formed:						
ls	Is this Business authorized to operate in the Project location?						

1.03 Identify all businesses that own Business in whole or in part (25% or greater), or that are wholly or partly (25% or greater) owned by Business:

Name of business:	Affiliation:	
Address:		
Name of business:	Affiliation:	
Address:		
Name of business:	Affiliation:	
Address:		

1.04 Provide information regarding the Business's officers, partners, and limits of authority.

Name:	Title:
Authorized to sign contracts:	D Limit of Authority: \$
Name:	Title:
Authorized to sign contracts:	D Limit of Authority: \$
Name:	Title:
Authorized to sign contracts:	D Limit of Authority: \$
Name:	Title:

ARTICLE 2—LICENSING

2.01 Provide information regarding licensure for Business:

Name of License:	
Licensing Agency:	
License No:	Expiration Date:
Name of License:	
Licensing Agency:	
License No:	Expiration Date:

ARTICLE 3—DIVERSE BUSINESS CERTIFICATIONS

3.01 Provide information regarding Business's Diverse Business Certification, if any. Provide evidence of current certification.

Certification	Certifying Agency	Certification Date
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise		
Minority Business Enterprise		
Woman-Owned Business Enterprise		
Small Business Enterprise		
Disabled Business Enterprise		
Veteran-Owned Business Enterprise		
□ Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Business		
HUBZone Business (Historically Underutilized) Business		
□ Other		
□ None		

ARTICLE 4—SAFETY

4.01 Provide information regarding Business's safety organization and safety performance.

Name of Business's Safety Officer:						
Safety Certifications						
Certification Name	Issuing Agency	Expiration				

4.02 Provide Worker's Compensation Insurance Experience Modification Rate (EMR), Total Recordable Frequency Rate (TRFR) for incidents, and Total Number of Recorded Manhours (MH) for the last 3 years and the EMR, TRFR, and MH history for the last 3 years of any proposed Subcontractor(s) that will provide Work valued at 10% or more of the Contract Price. Provide documentation of the EMR history for Business and Subcontractor(s).

Year									
Company	EMR	TRFR	ΜН	EMR	TRFR	MH	EMR	TRFR	MH

ARTICLE 5—FINANCIAL

5.01 Provide information regarding the Business's financial stability. Provide the most recent audited financial statement, and if such audited financial statement is not current, also provide the most current financial statement.

Financial Institution:						
Business address:						
Date of Business's mo	st recent financial statement:		□ Attached			
Date of Business's most recent audited financial statement:						
Financial indicators from the most recent financial statement						
Contractor's Current Ratio (Current Assets ÷ Current Liabilities)						
	tio ((Cash and Cash Equivalents + Accour ts) ÷ Current Liabilities)	ts Receivable +				

ARTICLE 6—SURETY INFORMATION

6.01 Provide information regarding the surety company that will issue required bonds on behalf of the Business, including but not limited to performance and payment bonds.

Surety Name:									
Surety is a corpo	Surety is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the state of:								
Is surety authoriz	zed to provide	e surety bonds in t	the Project location?	' 🗆 Yes 🗆] No				
Federal Bonds ar	Is surety listed in "Companies Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal Bonds and as Acceptable Reinsuring Companies" published in Department Circular 570 (as amended) by the Bureau of the Fiscal Service, U.S. Department of the Treasury?								
Mailing Address (principal place c	of business):								
Physical Address (principal place of business):									
Phone (main):			Phone (claims):						

ARTICLE 7—INSURANCE

7.01 Provide information regarding Business's insurance company(s), including but not limited to its Commercial General Liability carrier. Provide information for each provider.

Name of insurance provider, and type of policy (CLE, auto, etc.):						
Insurance Provider		Type of Policy (Coverage Provided)				
Are providers licensed or auth	norized to issue po	licies in the Projec	t location?	🗆 Yes 🗆 No		
Does provider have an A.M. E	or better?		🗆 Yes 🗆 No			
Mailing Address						
(principal place of business):						
Physical Address						
(principal place of business):						
Phone (main):		Phone (claims):				

EJCDC C-451, Qualifications Statement. Copyright[©] 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

ARTICLE 8—CONSTRUCTION EXPERIENCE

8.01 Provide information that will identify the overall size and capacity of the Business.

Average number of current full-time employees:	
Estimate of revenue for the current year:	
Estimate of revenue for the previous year:	

8.02 Provide information regarding the Business's previous contracting experience.

Years of experience with projects like the proposed project:

As a general contractor:
As a joint venturer:

Has Business, or a predecessor in interest, or an affiliate identified in Paragraph 1.03:

Been disqualified as a bidder by any local, state, or federal agency within the last 5 years?

Yes _ No

Been barred from contracting by any local, state, or federal agency within the last 5 years?

Yes _ No

Been released from a bid in the past 5 years? _ Yes _ No

Defaulted on a project or failed to complete any contract awarded to it? _ Yes _ No

Refused to construct or refused to provide materials defined in the contract documents or in a change order? _ Yes _ No

Been a party to any currently pending litigation or arbitration?

Yes
No

Provide full details in a separate attachment if the response to any of these questions is Yes.

- 8.03 List all projects currently under contract in Schedule A and provide indicated information.
- 8.04 List a minimum of three and a maximum of six projects completed in the last 5 years in Schedule B and provide indicated information to demonstrate the Business's experience with projects similar in type and cost of construction.
- 8.05 In Schedule C, provide information on key individuals whom Business intends to assign to the Project. Provide resumes for those individuals included in Schedule C. Key individuals include the Project Manager, Project Superintendent, Quality Manager, and Safety Manager. Resumes may be provided for Business's key leaders as well.

ARTICLE 9—REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS

- 9.01 Provide the following information with the Statement of Qualifications:
 - A. If Business is a Joint Venture, separate Qualifications Statements for each Joint Venturer, as required in Paragraph 1.02.
 - B. Diverse Business Certifications if required by Paragraph 3.01.
 - C. Certification of Business's safety performance if required by Paragraph 4.02.
 - D. Financial statements as required by Paragraph 5.01.

- E. Attachments providing additional information as required by Paragraph 8.02.
- F. Schedule A (Current Projects) as required by Paragraph 8.03.
- G. Schedule B (Previous Experience with Similar Projects) as required by Paragraph 8.04.
- H. Schedule C (Key Individuals) and resumes for the key individuals listed, as required by Paragraph 8.05.
- I. Additional items as pertinent.

This Statement of Qualifications is offered by:

Business:	
(typed or printed name of organization)	
By:	
, (individual's signature)	
Name:(typed or printed)	
Title:	
(typed or printed)	
Date:	
(date signed)	ing l
(If Business is a corporation, a partnership, or a joint venture, attach evidence of authority to s	ign.)
Attest: (individual's signature)	
Name:	
(typed or printed)	
Title:	
(typed or printed)	
Address for giving notices:	
Designated Representative:	
Name:	
(typed or printed)	
Title:	
Address:	
Phone:	
Email:	

Schedule A—Current Projects

Name of Organization						
Project Owner			Project Nam	e		
General Description of P	roject					
Project Cost			Date Projec	:		
Key Project Personnel	Project Manager	Project Superi	ntendent	Sa	fety Manager	Quality Control Manager
Name						
Reference Contact Inform	mation (listing names indica	tes approval to contacting	g the names in	dividuals as	a reference)	
	Name	Title/Position	Organ	ization	Telephone	Email
Owner						
Designer						
Construction Manager						
Project Owner			Project Nam	e		
General Description of P	roject					
Project Cost			Date Projec	:		
Key Project Personnel	Project Manager	Project Superi	ntendent Safe		fety Manager	Quality Control Manager
Name						
Reference Contact Inform	mation (listing names indica	tes approval to contacting	g the names in	dividuals as	a reference)	
	Name	Name Title/Position		Organization Telephone		Email
Owner						
Designer						
Construction Manager						
Project Owner			Project Nam	e		
General Description of P	roiect					
Project Cost			Date Project			
Key Project Personnel	Project Manager	Project Superi	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		fety Manager	Quality Control Manager
Name					· · ·	
Reference Contact Information (listing names indicates approval to contacting the names individuals as a reference)						
	Name	Title/Position	Organ	ization	Telephone	Email
Owner						
Designer						
Construction Manager						

EJCDC[®] C-451, Qualifications Statement—Schedule A—Current Projects. Copyright[©] 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Schedule B—Previous Experience with Similar Projects

Name of Organization						
Project Owner			Project Nam	e		
General Description of P	roject					
Project Cost			Date Project			
Key Project Personnel	Project Manager	Project Supe	rintendent	Si	afety Manager	Quality Control Manager
Name						
Reference Contact Inform	mation (listing names indica	tes approval to contactir	ng the names ind	lividuals as	s a reference)	
	Name	Title/Position	Organ	zation	Telephone	Email
Owner						
Designer						
Construction Manager						
Project Owner			Project Nam	e		
General Description of P	roject		·			
Project Cost			Date Project			
Key Project Personnel	Project Manager	Project Supe	rintendent	Si	afety Manager	Quality Control Manager
Name						
Reference Contact Inform	mation (listing names indica	tes approval to contactir	ng the names inc	lividuals as	s a reference)	
	Name	Name Title/Position		Organization Telep		Email
Owner						
Designer						
Construction Manager						
Project Owner			Project Nam			
General Description of P	roiect		Troject Nam			
Project Cost			Date Project			
Key Project Personnel	Project Manager	Project Supe			afety Manager	Quality Control Manager
Name					, 0	
Reference Contact Information (listing names indicates approval to contacting the names individuals as a reference)						
	Name	Title/Position	Organ	zation	Telephone	Email
Owner						
Designer						
Construction Manager						

Schedule B—Previous Experience with Similar Projects

Name of Organization							
Project Owner				Project Nam	e		
General Description of P	roject						
Project Cost				Date Project			
Key Project Personnel	Project Manager		Project Superir	ntendent Safe		ety Manager	Quality Control Manager
Name							
Reference Contact Inform	mation (listing names indica	ates appr	oval to contacting	the names inc	ividuals as a	a reference)	
	Name	Ti	itle/Position	Organ	zation	Telephone	Email
Owner							
Designer							
Construction Manager							
Project Owner				Project Nam	e		
General Description of P	roject				l		
Project Cost				Date Project			
Key Project Personnel	Project Manager	Project Manager Project Superin		ntendent Safet		ety Manager	Quality Control Manager
Name							
Reference Contact Inform	mation (listing names indica	ates appr	oval to contacting	the names inc	ividuals as a	a reference)	
	Name	Name Title/Position		Organization Telephone		Email	
Owner							
Designer							
Construction Manager							
Project Owner				Project Nam	<u>م</u>		
General Description of P	roiect			Troject Nam			
Project Cost				Date Project			
Key Project Personnel	Project Manager		Project Superir	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		ety Manager	Quality Control Manager
Name							
Reference Contact Information (listing names indicates approval to contacting the names individuals as a reference)							
	Name	Ti	itle/Position	Organ	zation	Telephone	Email
Owner							
Designer							
Construction Manager							

Schedule C—Key Individuals

Project Manager		
Name of individual		
Years of experience as project manager		
Years of experience with this organization		
Number of similar projects as project manager	•	
Number of similar projects in other positions		
Current Project Assignments		
Name of assignment	Percent of time used for	Estimated project
	this project	completion date
Reference Contact Information (listing names	indicates approval to contact named ind	ividuals as a reference)
Name	Name	
Title/Position	Title/Position	
Organization	Organization	
Telephone	Telephone	
Email	Email	
Project	Project	
Candidate's role on	Candidate's role on	
project	project	
Project Superintendent	Г	
Name of individual		
Years of experience as project superintendent		
Years of experience with this organization		
Number of similar projects as project superinter	endent	
Number of similar projects in other positions		
Current Project Assignments		1
Name of assignment	Percent of time used for	Estimated project
	this project	completion date
Reference Contact Information (listing names		ividuals as a reference)
Name	Name	
Title/Position	Title/Position	
Organization	Organization	
Telephone	Telephone	
Email	Email	
Project	Project	
Candidate's	Candidate's	
role on project	role on project	

Safety Manager		
Name of individual		
Years of experience as project manager		
Years of experience with this organization		
Number of similar projects as project manager		
Number of similar projects in other positions		
Current Project Assignments		
Name of assignment	Percent of time used for	Estimated project
	this project	completion date
Reference Contact Information (listing names indicates a	nproval to contact named ind	ividuals as a reference)
Name	Name	
Title/Position	Title/Position	
Organization	Organization	
Telephone	Telephone	
Email	Email	
Project	Project	
Candidate's role on	Candidate's role on	
project	project	
Quality Control Manager		
Name of individual		
Years of experience as project superintendent		
Years of experience with this organization		
Number of similar projects as project superintendent		
Number of similar projects in other positions		
Current Project Assignments		
Name of assignment	Percent of time used for	Estimated project
	this project	completion date
Reference Contact Information (listing names indicates a		viduals as a reference)
Name	Name	
Title/Position	Title/Position	
Organization	Organization	
Telephone	Telephone	
Email	Email	
Project	Project	
Candidate's	Candidate's	
role on project	role on project	